Network Password Recovery Wizard

USER MANUAL

Copyright (c) 2021 Passcape Software. All rights reserved. Passcape Software

1.	Intro	oduction	4
1	.1	About the program	. 5
1	.2	Features and benefits	. 5
1	.3	System Requirements	. 5
2.	Wor	king with the program	7
2	.1	Main window	. 8
2	.2	Manual mode for network connections passwords	. 8
2	.3	Recovered network connections passwords	. 9
2	4	Manual mode for network credentials	11
2	5	Recovered network credentials	12
2	.5	Domain eached passwords	12
2	.0	Menuel mede for wireless network keys	12
2	./		15
2	.8	Recovered wireless keys and passwords	17
2	.9	Manual mode for remote desktop passwords	20
2	.10	Recovered RDP passwords	22
2	.11	Decrypting Windows CardSpace (formely InfoCards)	23
	2.11.1	Selecting data source	25
	2.11.2	Reading system credentials	26
	2.11.3	Decrypting system's Master Key	27
	2.11.4	Decrypting user's Master Key	28
	2.11.5	Decrypting InfoCard public data	28
	2.11.6	Decrypting InfoCard PIN	29
	2.11.6	6.1 Choosing recovery method	31
	2.11.6	5.2 Setting recovery options	32
	2.1	1.6.2.1 Preliminary attack	33
	2.1	1 6 2 3 Dictionary attack entions	34 26
	2.1	1.6.2.4 Brute-force attack options	37
	2.1	11.6.2.5 Mask attack options	. 38
	2.1	1.6.2.6 Base-w ord attack options	. 39
	2.1	1.6.2.7 Combined dictionary attack options	. 41
	2.1	1.6.2.8 Phrase attack options	43
	2.11.6	5.3 Launching the selected attack	45
	2.11.7	Decrypted private data	45
2	.12	Asterisks password revealer	47
2	.13	Server emulators (POP3, IMAP, SMTP, FTP, NNTP)	49
2	.14	Recovering passwords from hashes	52

Table of Contents

2.15	Loading online dictionaries	53
2.16	Setting a Program Access Password	
2.17	Program Interface Language	55
3. Lio	cense and registration	57
3.1	License Agreement	
3.2	Registration	
3.3	Limitation of unregistered version	60
4. Te	echnical support	61
4.1	Reporting problems	
4.2	Suggesting features	
4.3	Contacts	
Index		63

Introduction

1 Introduction

1.1 About the program

Network Password Recovery Wizard is a Windows network password recovery program. The range of passwords recoverable by the program is quite wide. NPRW can recover the following types of passwords:

- Network connections passwords, which include Dialup (RAS), VPN, Direct PC, and other passwords.
- Local area network and Internet connection passwords. This category covers stored passwords for accessing other computers within your LAN, Internet Explorer passwords for protected Web sites, other passwords stored by Windows Credential Manager. For example, Exchange server's e-mail passwords, .NET Passport accounts in MSN Messenger, etc.
- Domain cached passwords
- Passwords and keys for accessing wireless networks. NPRW literally "picks out" wireless network passwords from all available places: configuration data stored on USB disk, configuration data saved by Windows Wireless Network Setup Wizard, and from connections data stored in Windows registry.
- Remote Desktop passwords.
- Asterisks (****) passwords
- Mail/FTP/News passwords of any programs (by emulating POP3, IMAP, SMTP, NNTP or FTP server)
- CardSpace (InfoCard) public, private data and PINs.

The program's interface is simple. NPRW can operate automatically, not requiring any special knowledge from you, and under your control (great for advanced users), allowing you managing the recovery process on your own. This approach would be great for recovering passwords from your old accounts data.

1.2 Features and benefits

With this program you can:

- · Recover the most of Windows network passwords
- · Choose between two (automatic and manual) recovery modes
- Export passwords to text html or excel files
- Prevent an unauthorized program execution

1.3 System Requirements

Requirements

Windows® NT+, less than 6Mb on your hard drive. You need administrator privileges in order to run the program in automatic mode.

Restrictions

• It is required Windows XP or higher to recover passwords stored by Windows Credential Manager.

- To use Remote Desktop, you need a computer running Windows XP Professional with a connection to a LAN or the Internet.
- To recover wireless keys/passwords it is required Windows XP Service Pack 2 and Wireless Zero Configuration service running.
- WPA-PSK passwords (as well as InfoCard PINs), except simple ones, cannot be decrypted instantly.
- Virtual servers support some extended authentication types (NTLMv1, CRAM-MD5, DIGEST-MD5, etc.). However some rarely used stuff (eg. MicroSoft's SPA) are not supported yet and probably never will.
- Some auto-mode features are required Administrator privileges and may not work if running from a remote drive.
- Asterisks revealer cannot uncover some kinds of programmatically protected **** fields. Some applications are not supported as well (eg. Opera, Firefox).

Known issues or bugs

• The program although contains no harmful code, may be detected by some anti-virus/anti-spyware software as potentially dangerous or "potentially unwanted program". This is also known as "False Alert", and it's quite a common problem for all password recovery software.

Working with the program

2 Working with the program

2.1 Main window

In the program's main dialog, select the wizard operation mode (automatic or manual) and the type of passwords to be recovered. Currently, the program supports 4 types of passwords:

- <u>Network connections passwords</u>
- Local and global network credentials
- Domain cached passwords
- Wireless network keys
- <u>Remote desktop passwords</u>
- <u>Windows Vista CardSpace (InfoCards)</u>
- Asterisks password revealer
- Server emulators

Advanced options are also available; you can find them at the bottom of the screen. One of those options allows enabling or disabling the logging. Logging is helpful to resolve sudden errors occurred in the program. The second additional option allows <u>choosing the interface language</u>. Additional language modules can be downloaded from Passcape Software's server.

2.2 Manual mode for network connections passwords

To recover network connections passwords manually, you will need to have at least two Windows registry files: SYSTEM and SECURITY. They are stored in the folder C:\Windows\system32\config. The C:\Windows folder can be different on your computer.

🚾 NPRW - n	nanual mode for RAS, VPN, etc.						
Ple	NPRW - manual mode (step 2 of 3) Please specify the full path to the registry files. These files usually located in the 						
	Files required for decryption						
	SYSTEM registry file						
	D:\WINDOWS\system32\config\System						
	SECURITY registry file						
	D:\WINDOWS\system32\config\Security						
	Windows® phonebook (pbk) file						
	D:\Documents and Settings\All Users\Application Data\Microsoft\Network\Con						
	Click 'Next' to decrypt and view the passwords						
More	<< <u>B</u> ack <u>Next</u> >> <u>E</u> xit						

To recover the data in full, you will also need the Phonebook file. This file is normally stored in the folder C:\Documents and Settings\All Users\Application

Data\Microsoft\Network\Connections\Pbk\rasphone.pbk. Where C:\Documents and Settings is the path to user profiles folder. Recovering passwords without the phonebook file is also possible. In this case, only logins and passwords will be recovered, missing the connection names, phone numbers, etc.

Important! Using the program provided that you are the legal owner of all files or data you are going to recover through the use of our software or have permission from the legitimate owner to perform these acts.

2.3 Recovered network connections passwords

This is what recovered passwords look like:

🕎 NPRW - de	™ NPRW - decrypted passwords 📃 🗖 🔀								
Decrypted passwords Right click on the listbox to view context menu. Click on a column header to sort the list.									
Туре	Connection name	Login	Password	Phone/host	Owner				
G Phone	test≫≫	testlogin	testpass	911 000	<all users=""></all>				
G Direct	nnn	1	2		<all users=""></all>				
L Phone	Bluetooth DUN Connection			*99***1#	S-1-5-21-154;				
L Vpn	Passcape	admin	psbase	passcape.com	S-1-5-21-154				
L Direct	vispapo	vista log	vistapsw		S-1-5-21-154				
<)	>				
<u>R</u> eport	<u>Report</u> Copy Save Total entries: 5								
More			<< <u>B</u> ack	<u>N</u> ext >>	<u>E</u> xit				

NPRW supports recovering passwords for the following types of connections:

- Phone Phone line, for example, modem, ISDN, X.25
- Vpn Virtual Private Network.
- Direct Direct serial or parallel connection
- Internet Connection Manager connection.
- Broadband Broadband connections, e.g. DSL.

The L(ocal) letter standing before a connection type means that the connection settings are only available to the account created the connection.

The G(lobal) letter means that the connection is available to all users of this computer.

The **S**(ystem) letter indicates a system account

2.4 Manual mode for network credentials

ም NPRW - manual mode f	or network credentials	
NI Plea	PRW - manual mode (step 2 of 4) ase select a type of passwords to decrypt.	
What do you want to decrypt		
Opmain passwords, .NET	passport, LAN credentials, Credential Manag	ger passwords
C:\Documents and Settin	gs\John\Application Data\Microsoft\Crede	ntials\S-1-5-21-1547161 🔽 🛄
 Websites credentials store C:\Documents and Settin Windows Credential Backs 	d by Internet Explorer 4-6 gs\John\ntuser.dat up File (*.crd)	
C:\Vista\mylan.ord		💌
CRD password:		Check simple passwords >>
Click 'Next' to decrypt and view	the passwords	
More	<< <u>B</u> ack	Next >> Exit

The manual recovery of local and global network passwords, in its turn, divides into two parts:

- The recovery of passwords stored in Windows Credentials Manager. Those include passwords for accessing other computers within your LAN, Exchange server's e-mail passwords, .NET Passport accounts in MSN Messenger, etc. Physically all of these passwords are stored in the file C: \Documents and Settings\%USER%\Application Data\Microsoft\Credentials\%SID%\Credentials. Where %USER% - is your account name, and %SID% is your account's sid string. Please note that your computer may have a different user profiles folder (C:\Documents and Settings). Once the Credentials file is selected, on the next step the program's wizard will ask you to enter three additional parameters that are necessary for the further recovery:
 - user's logon password
 - user's Master Key. It is generally stored in the folder: C:\Documents and Settings\%USER% \Application Data\Microsoft\Protect\%SID%\xxx. Where stands for a unique key name.
 user's SID.

Normally, NPRW fills the last two parameters automatically.

 Passwords to Web resources used, for instance, by Internet Explorer. Passwords of this type are stored in the Protected Storage within user's registry. You will need to select or enter path to it manually. User's registry file is stored in its profile root; the file name is ntuser.dat; e.g., C: \Documents and Settings\John\ntuser.dat. This file is all you would need to have to recover passwords of this type. Important! Using the program provided that you are the legal owner of all files or data you are going to recover through the use of our software or have permission from the legitimate owner to perform these acts.

2.5 Recovered network credentials

0	🚾 NPRW - decrypted passwords							
	Decrypted passwords Right click on the listbox to view context menu. Click on a column header to sort the list.							
	Туре	User name	Password	Domain	Last written			
	G MS Passport	info@passcape.com	Something	Passport.Net*	05.10.2006 09:06:1			
	G Domain password	local\testacc	Itestpass	passcape.com	05.10.2006 08:47:5			
	G MS Passport	username\usr		taggetname	11.08.2006 17:48:4			
	L MS Passport	info@passcape.com	Something	Passport.Net*	05.10.2006 09:06:1			
	L Domain password	local\testacc	Itestpass	passcape.com	05.10.2006 08:47:5			
	L MS Passport	username\usr		taggetname	11.08.2006 17:48:4			
	WWeb resources		admin	192.168.1.1:80/80				
	WWeb resources	ASP	pwd	members.asp-shar				
	WWeb resources	cocker	bocker	www.passcape.co				
	<				>			
Report Copy Save Total entries: 9								
More << <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext >> <u>Exit</u>								

Password types within this category are marked by the corresponding characters.

W(eb) - for Web resources

L(ocal) and G(lobal) - for passwords recovered from Credentials Manager.

2.6 Domain cached passwords

Let's split the entire recovery process into three pieces:

- 1. Decryption of cached domain entries
- 2. Analysis of obtained data
- 3. Decryption of password for selected entry

1. Decryption of cached domain entries

Launch the application and from the drop-down menu select what we want to recover: Domain Cached Passwords. If the cached records are on the local computer, with confidence fire up the automatic mode and move ahead.

Prost Carly	Please select a recovery mode:
	 AUTOMATIC - recover all selected passwords with a single click MANUAL - manual recovery mode for advanced users
	What do you want to recover
	Domain cached passwords
2MES	Enable logging
10000	Interface language
	English

The manual operating mode is more flexible and allows user to manually select data source, whether that's the standard location (registry files), Passcape's native import/export file or imported from a file used in other programs.

📅 NPRW - manual mode for domain cached passwords					
NPRW - manual mode (step 2 of 3) Please specify the full path to the registry files. Usually these files reside in the <windir>\system32\config directory.</windir>					
CLocation of the domain cached passwords					
 Standard location (registry) SYSTEM registry file 					
C:\WINDOWS\system32\config\System					
SECURITY registry file					
C:\WINDOWS\system32\config\Security					
Import from Passcape export/import file					
Import from PSPR export file (Hex(User):Hex(Hash):Hex(Pbkdr2Lounter):Date)					
Import from standard text file (User:Hex(Hash):Domain:)					
Click 'Next' to decrypt and view the passwords					
More < <pre> Kore Kore</pre>	Exit				

Click 'Next' and wait for the calculation results.

2. Analysis of obtained data

Upon a successful decryption or import of the data, the user will be offered a list of decrypted records. Each record has several fields; for instance, user name, server, membership in groups, etc.

Opening up the context menu by right-clicking allows engaging the program's extended capabilities. For the entire list: copy, save, view report or export entire list. For an individual record: change password, delete record, validate password, recover password by searching the simplest, frequently occurring combinations, or launch a full-scale attack.

🐨 NPRW - decrypted passwords								
Decrypted passwords Right click on the listbox to view context menu. Click on a column header to sort the list.								
User name	Last access time	Hash type	Password Password hash					
NetShowServices Администратор ГиАм_W2K	02-19-2008 10:15 02-19-2008 10:16 09-10-2007 09:35 9-10-2007 09:35	NT compatible NT compatible NT compatible	Check password Guess simple passwords Copy to clipboard Copy to clipboard View text report View text report View as excel report Copy list to clipboard Save list to file Change password Remove cached entry Export Export Export encrypted Copy te clipboard Export 3					
More		< < E	ack Next >> Exit					

Before launching the attack on password of the selected record, take a note of these two fields: 'Password' and 'Hash type'. Sometimes a cached password can be recovered without appealing to the full attack. In such case, if the program has found the password of the record, it will be kept in the 'Password' field, and the record will be marked with the corresponding icon.

The 'Hash type' field contains password hash type, which can be 'NT compatible instant' - instant recovery, 'Win2K compatible fast' - quick recovery at the speed of several millions of passwords per second or 'Vista, slow' - the recovery speed is only several hundreds of passwords per second on a modern computer.

3. Decryption of password for selected entry

So, to begin the recovery of the password for a selected record, right-click on it and then select 'Decrypt password hash' on the context menu. This will open up the decryption method selection dialog, common

to all Passcape Software programs. There is no sense in describing all types of attacks; the detailed information on that can be found on the pages related to the recovery of Opera passwords or Firefox Master Password.

Unsophisticated user might ask a completely reasonable and coherent question: "There is no 100% guarantee of the recovery, although there are many methods; which attack should I start with to raise the probability of its successful completion?"

For choosing the type and the sequence of the attacks, we advise to follow this algorithm, which is applicable in the majority of cases to all types of passwords to be recovered:

- First, enable the preliminary attack option, if it is available. It will help to recover simple and frequently used combinations.
- Second, if you are aware of any specifics of the password you are looking for, it's better to try mask attack or base-word attack first. Specifically, if you know a part of the password - using mask attack would be more effective. If you know the basic component of the password or, for example, know the password but don't remember the sequence of caps and lowercase characters in it, base-word attack would do the job better.
- Third, if you have no information on the password you are looking for, which occurs most frequently, be guided by the following sequence of steps:
 - 1. Run AI attack with mutation and indexing options set to light.
 - 2. If it fails to find the password, just try again and set mutation option to 'normal' and indexing to 'deep' levels.
 - 3. Launch dictionary attack with the mutation option disabled.
 - 4. Launch dictionary attack with the mutation option enabled; the depth of mutation depends on the amount of available time and the attack speed. When searching for passwords typed in the national keyboard layout, the depth of mutation should be set to strong.
 - 5. Select and download online dictionaries and repeat steps 3 4.
 - 6. Launch pass-phrase attack with the mutation option disabled.
 - 7. Launch pass-phrase attack with the mutation option enabled and set to the maximum productivity. This will allow finding passwords typed in the national keyboard layout.
 - 8. Select and download online pass-phrase dictionaries and repeat steps 6 7.
 - 9. Launch combined dictionary attack with defined phrase generation rules.
 - 10. Select and download online dictionaries for combined attack and repeat step 9.
 - 11. Select a charset for brute-force attack, launch the attack.
 - 12. If necessary, select a new or complete the old character set and repeat the brute-force attack; i.e. step 11.

2.7 Manual mode for wireless network keys

Wireless networking is a way to connect computers or other devices, either in your home or across long distances, using infrared light or radio frequency signals. Sometimes when you connect to a wireless network, you are prompted to enter a network key (also called a **W**ired Equivalency **P**rivacy key). This key is like a password that you need to gain access to the network. When you enable WEP, you can specify that a network key be used for encryption. A network key might be provided for you automatically, or you can specify the key by typing it yourself. If you specify the key, you can also specify the key length (40 bits or 104 bits), key format (ASCII characters or hexadecimal digits), and key index. The wireless network adapter in your computer might support the **W**i-Fi **P**rotected **A**ccess security protocol. WPA provides stronger encryption than WEP.

To recover wireless network passwords, you will need to specify their location within your system:

- Removable drive. Wireless network settings can be stored on a USB flash or other removable drive. If you have chosen this option, you will be asked to select a drive with the data on the pulldown list. If the 'Next >>' button remains unavailable after you have selected the disk, it means that the program could not find the data required for this operation. No additional data is necessary for recovering passwords from this configuration.
- Wireless Flash Configuration the last configuration, which is prudently stored by Windows' wireless network setup wizard. That data is normally saved in a file named LastFlashConfig.WFC, which is stored in the folder C:\Documents and Settings\%USER%\Application Data\Microsoft.
 NPRW will automatically search for the necessary data in all local user profiles on your computer.
- 3. Windows registry. Passwords to wireless connections are stored in Windows registry. If you have selected this location, the further recovery will be possible only when these three Windows registry files are available: SOFTWARE, SYSTEM, and SECURITY. SYSTEM will be used for recovering SYSKEY. SYSKEY and SECURITY will be used for recovering Windows system account password. And the encrypted data actually stored in the SOFTWARE registry hive.

🚾 NPRW - ma	anual mode for v	vireless keys						
	NPRW - manual mode (step 2 of 4) Please select a source location of the wireless configuration							
	CLocation of the wireless configuration							
	🔘 Wireless config	uration saved by Network Setup Wizard to USB flash drive						
	1:\ (removable)	~					
	Show all dri	Ves						
	C Last configurati	on stored locally by Wireless Netword Setup Wizard						
	C:\Documents	and Settings/John/Application Data/Microsoft/LastFlashCo	nt 💌 🛄					
	Wireless conne	ction configurations stored in the registru						
		D:\\w/INDD\w/S\sustem32\config\Software						
	SUFTWARE							
	SYSTEM	D:\WINDUW5\system32\config\5ystem						
	SECURITY	D:\WINDOWS\system32\config\Security						
	Click 'Nevt' to decrup	t and view the passwords						
	CIER MERCIO DECIVID	r and view the basswords						
More		<< Back Next >>	<u>E</u> xit					

Other than that, once you have selected the registry files, on the third step of the program's wizard you will need to enter path to your system account's master key. Normally, that's a file of C: \WINDOWS\system32\Microsoft\Protect\S-1-5-18\xxx. Where xxx stands for the key name. Nothing bad will happen if you enter a wrong name within this folder; **NPRW** will attempt to locate the correct key automatically (usually, there are a few of them.)

Working with the program

🚾 NPRW - a	additional information required to finalize the decryption
	NPRW - manual mode (step 3 of 4) Please specify the user logon password, Master Key, and SID.
	Data required to decrypt DPAPI protected passwords
	Logon password of user whose data are to be decrypted
	Full path to the user's Master Kev
	C:\WINDOWS\system32\Microsoft\Protect\S-1-5-18\961ab1b1-e714-42e0-b2a6-ba2
	User's SID
	S-1-5-18
	Click 'Next' to decrupt and view the passwords
More	<< <u>Back</u> <u>N</u> ext >> <u>Exit</u>

Please note that **NPRW** recovers passwords _stored_ in Windows, you don't have to be connected to a wireless network.

Important! Using the program provided that you are the legal owner of all files or data you are going to recover through the use of our software or have permission from the legitimate owner to perform these acts.

2.8 Recovered wireless keys and passwords

Recovered network connection passwords/keys, as it was said above, are divided into three types and are marked with the corresponding characters:

S(ystem) - system configurations stored on a removable drive

L(ocal) - last configuration stored localy by wireless network setup wizard

G(lobal) - wireless connections passwords/keys

0	🚾 NPRW - decrypted passwords							×
	Decrypted passwords Right click on the listbox to view context menu. Click on a column header to sort the list.							
	Type/owner	Ssid	Authentication	Encryption	Key	Key type	Ke 🔨	
	L John	wl-ssid(test)	WPAPSK	TKIP		HEX 256 bits	345	
	L LocalService	wl-ssid	open	WEP		ASCII 40 bits	ZXC	
	S EV	wl-ssid(test)	WPAPSK	TKIP		HEX 256 bits	345	
	G System	wl-ssid	WPAPSK	TKIP		PSK ASCII 256 bits	Not	
	G System	no wep	Shared	WEP disabled	1	ASCII 40 bits	nov	
	G System		Open	WEP	1	ASCII 40 bits	543 🗉	
	G System	3	Open	WEP	1	ASCII 40 bits	123	
	G System	2	Open	WEP	1	ASCII 40 bits	123	
	G System	1	Open	WEP	1	ASCII 40 bits	123	
	G System	wpapsk(aes)	WPAPSK	AES		PSK HEX 256 bits	111	
	G System	wpapsk(TKIP)	WPAPSK	TKIP		PSK HEX 256 bits	qwe	
	G System	555(wpa_T	WPA	TKIP				2
	G System	444(wpa_aes)	WPA	AES				
	G System	333(auto)	Open	WEP	3			
	G Custom	asid(2abarad	Charad	MED	2	ACCIL NO FRA	C70 ¥	J
	<						2	
	<u>R</u> eport	<u>С</u> ору	<u>S</u> ave			Total e	ntries: 1	7
	More <u>Kext</u> <u>Next</u> <u>Exit</u>							

WEP Passwords (or keys, depending on the wireless configuration) are recovered at once. Please note that the recovered WEP connections passwords can be in the plain-text (ASCII) or hexadecimal (HEX) format, depending on the wireless connection settings.

WPA-PSK passwords cannot be decrypted instantly. If you are recovering a WPA-PSK password, you should be aware that Windows does not store the actual password. Instead, it calculates its hash using a strong OWF and then stores it in the encrypted format. It is very, very hard to pick a password to such hash in the real life. **NPRW** will try all available combinations for picking a simple WPA-PSK password; therefore, the recovery time increases as the number of WPA-PSK keys found by the program grows. In the final dialog, the failed WPA passwords will be highlighted in red.

In theory, it is not a mandatory to have a WPA-PSK password to create a new wireless connection. You can enjoy the recovered WPA-PSK key. To try using it, copy the WPA-PSK key (its length must be 64 characters) from **NPRW**. Open 'Control Panel' and then run 'Wireless Network Setup Wizard'. Select the 'Setup a new wireless network' option and then 'Manually assign a network key'. Now paste the key you have copied to clipboard into the appropriate edit box (actually there are two fields: one for the key and another one just for confirmation).

As a last resort you can use the context menu to check/recover a forgotten WPA-PSK password manually.

Checking Pre-Shared Key password	×
Please enter a password to check	80)
Pre-Shared Key password (8 -63 characters) secretword Check Close	

Starting from version 3.0, the program can perform a full attack on WPA-PSK passwords. However the recovery speed is very slow - approximately 500-600 passwords/sec on a modern computer. So there's no point for example to run a brute-force attack on PSK.

🖤 NPRW - dictiona	ry attack			
NPRW - WPA-PSK decryption (step 4 of 4) Press 'Start' button to begin the attack and find your lost password.				
Statictics				
Current password:	Bingham	Current dictionary:	common.dic	
Passwords total:	391 674	Passwords checked:	601	
Time elapsed:	0m:2s	Time left:	22m:14s	
Current speed:	293	Average speed:	293	
Click 'Stop' to termina	ite			
More		<< <u>B</u> ack	Stop	<u>E</u> xit

P.S. Wireless password recovery works only if your system has Wireless Zero Configuration service installed. To determine if the Wireless Zero Configuration service is installed and running, follow the steps below:

• Click Start, All Programs, Accessories, and then click Command Prompt.

- Type sc query wzcsvc , and press ENTER.
- If the Windows Zero Configuration service is active, the words "STATE : # RUNNING" will appear.

2.9 Manual mode for remote desktop passwords

With Remote Desktop, you can have access to a Windows session that is running on your computer when you are at another computer. This means, for example, that you can connect to your work computer from home and have access to all of your applications, files, and network resources as though you were in front of your computer at work.

To use Remote Desktop, you need the following:

- A computer running Windows XP Professional with a connection to a LAN or the Internet.
- A second computer with access to the LAN via network connection, modem, or VPN connection. This
 computer must have Remote Desktop Connection, formerly called the Terminal Services client,
 installed.
- Appropriate user accounts and permissions.

Remote Desktop Connections passwords are stored in *.rdp files, which are normally located in current user's 'My Documents' folder. When you select the manual mode, **NPRW** will automatically scan your disk searching for these files. If the program was unable to find a *.rdp file automatically, you can try locating it manually and entering path to it by hand.

Please note that *.rdp files have hidden attribute, thus may be invisible from Windows Explorer, Windows Search, or from 'Open As' dialog. To let the system show hidden and system files, open 'Control Panel', then click on 'Folder Options', and then select the 'View' tab. On this tab, find the option 'Show hidden files and folders' and select it. Clear the option 'Hide protected operating system files'. When the necessary passwords are recovered, it's better to reset these options to the way they were set before.

🚾 NPRW - manual mode for Remote Desk	top passwords	
NPR₩ - manual me Please specify the full path to the RDP file. It i Settings\ <user>\My E</user>	ode (step 2 of 4) s usually located in the C:\Documents And Documents directory.	
Files required for decryption		
Remote Desktop configuration file		
C:\Documents and Settings\John\M	ly Documents\Default.rdp 🛛 😽	
Citate Marshine de soust and citate des		
Lick Next to decrypt and view the	Dasswords	
More	<< Back Next >>	<u>E</u> xit

You can view the list of available remote desktop configuration through the menu: Start -> All Programs - > Accessories -> Communications -> Remote Desktop Connections.

Once all necessary information is selected, you can move on to the next step in the program's wizard - setting additional recovery parameters. Since the remote desktop password is encrypted using the system's DPAPI mechanism, **NPRW** will need to know three other things:

- 1. Data owner's logon password (to the rdp file, in our case)
- 2. User's master key
- 3. User's SID

Working with the program

🚾 NPRW - a	dditional information required to finalize the decryption 👘 🔲 🖾
	NPRW - manual mode (step 3 of 4) Please specify the user logon password, Master Key, and SID.
	Data required to decrypt DPAPI protected passwords
	Logon password of user whose data are to be decrypted
	Full path to the user's Master Key
	C:\Documents and Settings\John\Application Data\Microsoft\Protect\S-1-5-21-15471
	User's SID
	S-1-5-21-1547148622-1973051133-824325549-1001
	Click 'Next' to decrypt and view the passwords
More	< << <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext >> <u>Exit</u>

Usually, if we deal with a local account, the last two parameters will be filled by the program automatically. Otherwise, you will need to take care of it.

Important! Using the program provided that you are the legal owner of all files or data you are going to recover through the use of our software or have permission from the legitimate owner to perform these acts.

2.10 Recovered RDP passwords

This is what recovered Remote Desktop passwords look like:

🕎 NPRW - decryp	oted passwords	5			
Right click on I	De the listbox to view o	ecrypted passy context menu. Clic	vords ck on a column header t	o sort the list.	
Туре	Login	Password	Domain	Computer	
L Default.rdp	John	testpsw	localhost	JOHN-67DA9F1E3D	
L Guest.RDP	Guest		localhost	john-a14234ef9d	
L passcape.RDP	admin	deliberately	passcape.com	INTERNALPC	
L passcape.RDP admin deliberately passcape.com INTERNALPC					
<u>R</u> eport	<u>С</u> ору <u>9</u>	ave		Total entries: 3	
More			<< Back	Next >> <u>E</u> xit	

2.11 Decrypting Windows CardSpace (formely InfoCards)

What is Windows CardSpace

Windows CardSpace is an industry-standard solution for managing user's identity in the Internet. In other words, Windows CardSpace is a simple and secure way to identify users, not requiring them to enter their user names and passwords again and again, while they travel between Web resources. The identification meta-system, adopted by major software vendors, may become a crucial step forward. Taking into account the actuality of security concerns, Microsoft makes significant efforts to propagate its popularity. Unlike the earlier unified identification technologies (e.g., **Microsoft Passport**) Windows CardSpace manages directly the users and applications that are to be contacted. In other words, diverse schemes and levels of difficulty can be used for the access identification; e.g., when registering with Web forums or for online banking.

Windows CardSpace support is implemented in **.Net Framework 3.0**. Microsoft employees have also set out their plans in regards to the development of their identification technologies. After the release of their Longhorn Server, which is scheduled for the end of 2007, the corporation is planning to release the **Security Token Service** technology, intended for the integration to **Active Directory**. Security Token Service is a little resource consuming gateway, running under the WS-Trust specification for servers and clients, which functions as a mediator when exchanging security markers like Kerberos, SAML, etc. According to Microsoft, the foundations for their identification platform - Identity Metasystem - are Active

Directory and **Microsoft Identity Integration Server** (the latter one is to be built into Windows). With time, in these two products the corporation is going to implement the support of strong credential data (such as smartcards), access management, single point of entry, unified identification, protection of information rights, process audit and automation.

On the application level, Windows CardSpace is a pane of identification cards that can be used for authenticating user on diverse online resources. The selector points at the type of credentials necessary for accessing to each of the resources.

Windows CardSpace gives user the access to creating and managing his **Information Cards** (**InfoCards**). Just like one's personal information certified, for example, by the person's driver's license, passport or credit card, InfoCards is a data set certified by the publisher's digital signature.

Personal Information Card

Personal Information Card is a type of InfoCard, which user creates on his own and where he records his personal data. That's why Personal Information Card is often called a **"Self-issued Card"**. Unlike a **Managed Card**, a Personal Information Card, along with its data, is stored locally, in a special encrypted storage. Personal Information Card contains a permanent set of personal data, which cannot be expanded. Along with the set of private data, Personal Information Card includes general information (version of InfoCard, date issued and updated, current state and status, etc.), uniform identifier and **Master Key** for encrypting private data and generating cryptographic keys. Please note that user can set additional protection with a **PIN** - the InfoCard password.

Personal Information Card data encryption and storage methods deserve a closer look, mainly due to the great number of tricks used for protecting the data.

To begin, InfoCard storage is a locked folder inside user's profile, the access to which is denied for everyone, (including the Administrator), except for the system itself. Path to Vista CardSpace normally looks like this: C:\Users\%USERNAME%\AppData\Roaming\ Microsoft\CardSpace. This folder contains two files:

CardSpace.db - primary storage for all user's cards.

CardSpace.db.shadow - reserve storage used during card addition, removal operations, etc.

Windows CardSpace encryption

Windows CardSpace encryption is carried out according to the Master Key principle. In other words, to decrypt Windows CardSpace, one will have to decrypt its (Master) key first, which will be used as the primary material for decrypting the cards later on. Windows CardSpace Master Key's intriguing feature is that decrypting it takes two steps: using current **user's DPAPI** first, then using the **system's DPAPI**. Thus, Windows CardSpace is bound not only to current user but also to the operating system.

Windows CardSpace Master Key, in its turn, participates in the decryption of all cards. Each card stored inside Windows CardSpace consists of three objects:

1. **InfoCard public data**, which stores the card's system data; e.g., card version, its name and creation/installation/modification date, uniform identifier, logo, etc.

2. **InfoCard private data**. This object, just like a phone book, stores most frequently used claims. In Personal InfoCard, this set is also permanent. It doesn't contain passwords, account information or credit card numbers, thus minimizing the risk of disclosing user's confidential data.

3. **InfoCard Master Key**. InfoCard Master Key (set of random data) used for generating public/private key-pair used for signing and for encrypting InfoCard private data, if the card is pin-locked.

So, here is the overview of the decryption of InfoCard public data.

InfoCard private data encrypted with user password (infoCard PIN). But what happens if the PIN is lost or forgotten? Fortunately, there is a solution for recovering InfoCard PIN. The bad news is it's extremely hard, if at all possible, to recover it in the most difficult cases (long or tricky PIN). Nevertheless, let's take a look at this process in the **Netword Password Recovery Wizard**.

The linear scheme of decrypting InfoCard private data with an unknown PIN can be split into 7 major stages of the Wizard:

1. Select data source - CardSpace vs CardSpace Backup.

2. Read and decrypt system credentials. Oh yeah, they also exist.

3. Decrypt system's Master Key.

4. Decrypt user's (data owner) Master Key.

- 5. Decrypt InfoCard public data. Select the card.
- 6. Decrypt InfoCard PIN.
- 6.1. Select recovery (attack) method.
- 6.2. Set attack options
- 6.3. Launch selected attack.

7. Decrypt InfoCard private data if the previous step was a success.

* Steps 2-4 of the application's Wizard are not available in the automatic mode.

2.11.1 Selecting data source

Selecting data source - CardSpace vs CardSpace Backup

啦 NPRW - manual mode	for CardSpace (InfoCard)		
	NPR₩ - manual mode (s	step 2 of 10)	12
Please select a CardSpa	ice folder from the drop down lis	st or browse for new CardSp	bace directory.
Please select a CardSpa	e (InfoCard) folder		
CardSpace (InfoCard) fold	er		
C:\Users\John\AppData	Local\Microsoft\CardSpace	•	Add new CardSpace
_			
Decrypt from CardSpa	ce Backup File		
- Windows CardSpace Bar	skun		
CardSpace Backup File	C:\Users\John\Documents\2	l.ords	
Password	*******		
	✓ Hide characters as I type		
To continue, click 'Next'			
More	Ì	< Back Next	>> Exit
	(

In the beginning, the application's Wizard scans the system and prompts you to select one of the available CardSpace storages. The default choice is current user's CardSpace. If the sought CardSpace storage is not found on the drop-down list, you can set path to its folder manually (by clicking on the **Add New CardSpace** button). Please note that all operations with CardSpace assume you are having the Administrator rights.

Another, alternate source of InfoCards is **CardSpace Backup File**. Normally that's a file with the **.CRDS** extension (if user hasn't set different). Please note that in order to decrypt CardSpace Backup File, you will have to know its password. Windows Vista sets the minimum password length for CRDS as 8 characters.

Once the data source is selected, we can move on to the next step in the Wizard - decrypting system passwords.

2.11.2 Reading system credentials

Reading and decrypting system credentials

🕎 NPRW - manual mode for CardSpace (InfoCard)	
NPRW - manual mode (step 3 of 10) Please show the full path to the SYSTEM and SECURITY registry files. These files usually located in the C:\Windows\system32\config directory.	b
Curley Devider (he	
System Hegistry riles	
SYSTEM registry hive (typically C:\Windows\system32\config\System)	
C:\Windows\system32\config\System	
SECURITY registry hive (typically C:\Windows\system32\config\Security) C:\Windows\system32\config\Security	
To continue, click 'Next'	
More << Back Next >> Exit	

Any account in Windows, whether that's a user or the system, has the right to exist only when the corresponding passwords are set, even if those passwords are blank. System's accounts hide their passwords in **Windows Secrets** - a special storage for private information, inherited from the good old Windows NT.

In the automatic mode, the application reads that data automatically, without user's participation. In our case, we are to set the path to two registry files: SECURITY, which stores secrets (we are interested in just one secret that stores the password to the system account), and SYSTEM with the system data necessary for decrypting those. By default, registry files reside in the Windows folder; to be precise, in *%WINDIR%\system32\config.*

2.11.3 Decrypting system's Master Key

Decrypting system's Master Key

MPRW - manual mode for CardSpace (InfoCard)
NPRW - manual mode (step 4 of 10) Please specify the system Master Key file (usually C:\Windows\system32\Microsoft\Protect\S-1-5-18\User\ <guid>) Image: Comparison of the system State of the s</guid>
System DPAPI Master Key file
Full path to the system Master Key
C:\Windows\System32\Microsoft\Protect\S-1-5-18\User\50133ca2-dd9f-4225-b7ea-a8179e57f35a
To continue, click 'Next'
More << <u>B</u> ack Next >> <u>E</u> xit

So, we've gotten the system passwords. It gets worse and worse as it goes on. What are we to do next? Right, we'll need to decrypt the **System's Master Key**. If you remember that, system's Master Key along with **User's Master Key** are involved in the decryption of **CardSpace Master Key**. Hmm: Sounds quite funny. If it keeps going that way, soon enough Windows developers will have to invent a Super-Mega-Extra-Master Key.

Skipping unnecessary details and speaking the human language, on this step we will need to set path to the file, which normally resides in the following folder: *%WINDIR%\system32\Microsoft\Protect\S-1-5-18\User*. The application will figure out the file name automatically, using the data obtained on the previous steps. The only thing you will have to do is to set the path to that folder. Going on.

2.11.4 Decrypting user's Master Key

Decrypting user's (data owner) Master Key

MPRW - manual mode for CardSpace (InfoCard)
NPR₩ - manual mode (step 5 of 10)
Please specify the user logon password, Master Key, and SID.
User DPAPI credentials
Logon password of the user whose data are to be decrypted
takeoff
Hide characters as I type
Here Marter Kan Ch
ct\S-1-5-21-3988017198-1930135828-74678849236-1003\e5b114d4-d2d6-4a8a-829a-a454590abdf
Liver's SID
5.1-5-21-3988017198-1930135828-74678849236-1003
To continue, click 'Next'
More << <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext >> <u>E</u> xit

The last preparatory step before the actual decryption of CardSpace (bet you've thought it would never end :) is necessary to obtain user's Master Key. In Windows Vista, **User's Master Key** is located by default in the folder: C:\Users \%USER%\AppData\Roaming\Microsoft\Protect\%SID%.

Master Key name will be set by the application automatically. CardSpace owner's account password and its SID, which normally matches with the name of the %SID% folder, are involved in the decryption of the user's Master Key.

Once we are done with user's Master Key and with all the necessary data in our hand, we can finally get on the decryption of CardSpace.

2.11.5 Decrypting InfoCard public data

Decrypting InfoCard public data

	NPR₩ - ma Please select a	inual mode (step 6 Card to see it's public p	of 10) properties.
InfoCard name		ID	
V Live Labs ST	S: Personal Card	http://sts.labs.live.com	m/00037FFE8A7FA2D1/Personal
Personal care	11	um:uuid:fa391796-7f9	96-4f4e-a179-0754e3379ffe
🗸 Card2		um:uuid:8bf9a15d-36	ib8-418e-9fca-cebad81aed8b
🔒 Persona non	orata (test : all data in)	um:uuid:50b7c55f-bff	16-454a-9326-724856596779
InfoCard properti	ies		
InfoCard PIN:			Check simpe PINs >>
	📃 I don't know the PI	N, I want to recover or	ne
looued:	08.23.2007 15:08:23	lladatadi	08.23.2007 15:16:01
issued. Installadi	00-23-2007 15:00:23	 	01.01.10000_02:59:59
installeu.	00-23-2007 13.00.23	Expired.	01-01-10000 03.33.33
Version:	1	Status:	PIN not changed
Imported:	no	Issuer:	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/2005/0
Self issued:	yes	Issuer name:	Self
Bound:	not present	Language:	en
PIN protected:	yes	Privacy link:	
o continue, click	'Next'		
o continuo, oliot	100		

If the previous steps of the Wizard have been completed successfully, you should be looking at the picture like this one (see the figure). At the top of the picture, you should see the list of decrypted InfoCard with the names and uniform identifiers. A bit below that are the selected card's properties (to view a card's properties, select the card on the list). A list against the card's name may have icons that indicate whether the card is protected with a password. The meanings of the icons are:

Card not protected with PIN. Private data, i.e. claims, can be decrypted. The Next>> button will be enabled.

Card locked with PIN, but it has been found. Therefore, like in the first case, firmly move on to the Wizard's final step - the decryption of claims.

Card locked with PIN. The **Next>>** button becomes disabled. The recovery of the private data is impossible; however, you can try to recover the PIN.

2.11.6 Decrypting InfoCard PIN

Decrypting InfoCard PIN

	NPR₩ - ma Please select a	inual mode (step 6 Card to see it's public p	of 10) properties.
InfoCard name		ID	
🗸 Live Labs ST	S: Personal Card	http://sts.labs.live.com	m/00037FFE8A7FA2D1/Personal
Personal care	1	urn:uuid:fa391796-7f9	96-4f4e-a179-0754e3379ffe
🖌 Card2		um:uuid:8bf9a15d-36	b8-418e-9fca-cebad81aed8b
Bersona non	orata (test : all data in)	umuuid:50b7c55f-bff	16-4b4a-9326-7248b6596779
InfoCard properti	es		
InfoCard PIN:			<u>C</u> heck simpe PINs >>
	📝 I don't know the Pl	N, I want to recover or	ne
Issued:	08-23-2007 15:08:23	Updated:	08-23-2007 15:16:01
Installed:	08-23-2007 15:08:23	Expired:	01-01-10000 03:59:59
Version:	1	Status:	PIN not changed
Imported:	no	Issuer:	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/2005/
Self issued:	yes	Issuer name:	Self
Bound:	not present	Language:	en
PIN protected:	yes	Privacy link:	
lick 'Next' to reco	ver InfoCard password		

It's not a bad idea to first check the number against simple combinations (use the **Check Simple PINs>>** button). In one of the latest versions, the software has adopted the **Passcape Password Permutation** mechanism, which is involved in this check. The idea of the trick is that the more the more passwords have been found before the moment (no matter which ones), the more effectively it will recover the rest of the passwords. The search will take less than a minute on a moderate computer. Suppose, we haven't recover the PIN; what can we do next? Next, the only way to recover the PIN is through the search or attack. What does that mean? Select the option **"I don't know the PIN, but want to recover one"** and then click **Next>>** and move on to the recovery of the PIN. At the same time, you will see what the attack is.

2.11.6.1 Choosing recovery method

l Please select a decryption me	NPR₩ - ma ethod. You wil	nual mode (step 7 of 10 I be prompted to set various Wizard step)) decryptic	on options	on the next	3
Decryption method		milling otop.				
 Dictionary attack; 		🔘 Mask attack				
Brute-force attack		Phrase attack	<			
When password found	Cillified	nun Madin' satifu unu			D	
Play sound file	C. Wrinu				Browse	
🔘 Send e-mail message	Address:	myaddress@domain.com	Server:	[mail.dom	ain.com	
🔘 Run a program	C:\Wind	ows\system32\logon.scr			<u>B</u> rowse	
Print screenshot						\geq
Save to file and exit					<u>B</u> rowse	
Additional options Attack priority Preliminary attack	Normal	(frequently used passwords		•		
To continue, click 'Next'						

Decryption method

Currently the software can guess the password by launching several types of attacks:

- Artificial Intelligence Attack is a new type of attack developed in our company. It is based upon a social engineering method and allows, without resort to time-consuming and costly computations, to almost instantly recover certain passwords.
- **Dictionary attack** is the most efficient recovery method, when the program tries each word from the dictionary (or dictionaries if there are several dictionaries) you specify until it finds the original password or until the wordlist is out of words. This method is efficient since many people use regular words or phrases for password. Other than that, this type of recovery is performed quite fast compared to brute-force attack, for instance. Additional dictionaries can be fond on our website.
- **Brute-force attack**. If the dictionary attack has failed, you may need to take a closer look to bruteforce attack, when the program uses all possible combinations from the specified range of characters. For example, for a three-character range of lower-case Latin characters, it will check all possible combinations, starting with 'aaa', 'aab', 'aac', and all the way through 'zzz'. This is the slowest attack, so it is really great for short passwords.
- **Mask attack**. This type of attacks is useful if you have at least some information about the password. For example, you may know that the first four characters in the passwords are Latin letters; they are followed by a three-digit number. The mask attack is a variation of the brute-force attack, except that some characters for finding the password remain unchanged, and only a portion of the password may change. The special syntax is used for setting a mask or rule for finding a password. It will be described in detail in the corresponding chapter below.

- **Base-word attack**. At the first glance, this type of attack reminds the one we just described. It is just as efficient if a portion of the password to be recovered is known to us. However, unlike in the previous attack, here you do not have to set a mask just provide a basic word (or phrase). The program will take care of the rest. The phrase attack is based upon the experience of the social engineering and uses over 140 rules for possible modifications of the original phrase to generate a great number of possible password combinations.
- **Combined dictionary attack** uses primary to guess compound passwords. It is very similar to the dictionary attack, except that instead of using a single word for password verification it uses a combination of words created from several dictionaries.
- The idea of the **phrase attack** is to find the right password by searching through predefined and frequently used expressions, sayings, phrases and word combinations.

The most productive password recovery method (or PIN recovery like in our case) - is **dictionary attack**, where the software takes one word at a time from a dictionary and checks whether it works out or not. Optionally, you can enable mutation for each word. When it's enabled, depending on the depth of the mutation, the original word will undergo different modifications. For example, those can be adding numbers to the end of each word, removing vowels from it, etc.

If you know a part of the PIN, you should take a closer look at the last two attacks and maybe even start the recovery with them.

Brute-force attack is normally the worst choice, since to recover, for instance, an 8-character password of Latin characters a-z and numbers 0-9 (totally 2 901 713 047 668 combinations) on a modern computer it will take more than a week, even if the theory of probability is involved in the process. If the **Murphy laws** are involved, the recovery will take about half a month :)

When password found

This group allows setting an action to be performed automatically when the password is found. This option is convenient, for instance, to system administrators when passwords are being recovered on several computers at once. The program offers five possible notifications: play sound, send e-mail, run application, print screen or store results to file and close the program.

Important! If you choose the send e-mail notification type, make sure you have checked your firewall settings and have allowed the program to send e-mail to the Internet.

Additional options

In the Additional options group you can specify:

Attack priority. If you are planning on using your computer actively during attack, you are recommended to set the priority value to 'Below normal' or even 'Low'.

Preliminary attack. The program will check the most frequently used passwords before proceeding to the next step. Literally, by selecting this option, you activate the fifth type of attack, the preliminary attack. It may take up to 1 minute on slower computers. Preliminary attack consists of several parts and allows to 'catch' short and frequently used passwords like '*qwerty*' or '1234'.

2.11.6.2 Setting recovery options

Currently, as it was mentioned above, there are 7 decryption methods available:

- 1. Preliminary attack usually runs before each attack.
- 2. Dictionary attack. Try every word from a dictionary until the password is found. This attack is the most effective.
- 3. Brute-force attack guesses the password trying all possible password variants by given character set.

Working with the program

- 4. Mask attack is very helpful if there's any information about the password.
- 5. Base-word attack. Useful if a part (or source word) of the password is known.
- 6. Combined dictionary attack uses to guess complex/compound passwords.
- 7. Phrase attack uses primary to search complex password by looking through a dictionary with frequently used phrases.

Once selected a recovery type, you will be prompted for different options on the next Wizard page.

- Preliminary attack
- Artificial Intelligence attack
- Dictionary attack options
- Brute-force attack options
- Mask attack options
- Base-word attack options
- <u>Combined dictionary attack options</u>
- Phrase attack options

2.11.6.2.1 Preliminary attack

Preliminary attack is a time-limited simple set of several mini sub-attacks. It is often run when a password cannot be recovered instantly, but there's no need to launch a full (eg. brute-force or dictionary) attack. The preliminary attack activated by setting '*Check frequently used password before each attack*' check box on in common options dialog (see the screenshot below.)

😺 OPR - WAND Master Pass	word decryption method		
Selecting a Please select a decryption methor	type of decryption method (step 3 of 5) . You will be prompted to set various decryption options Wizard step.	s on the next	
 Decryption method Dictionary attack Brute-force attack Mask attack Base-word attack 	 Combined dictionary attack Pass-phrase attack 		
When password found Play sound file 	C:\WINDOWS\Media\notify.wav	<u>B</u> rowse	D
Send e-mail message	Address: myaddress@domain.com Server: mail.do	main.com	
🔘 Run a program	C:\WINDOWS\system32\logon.scr	<u>B</u> rowse	
 Print screenshot 			\rightarrow
◯ Save to file and exit		<u>B</u> rowse	
Additional options			
Attack priority	Normal		
Password creation rule Preliminary attack	 Use WAND Master Password creation rule Check frequently used passwords before each attai 	ck	
To continue, click 'Next'.			
More	<< <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext>>		xit

Usually a preliminary attack executes in less than a minute. When it is running the following dialog is displayed:

Preliminary attack - checking p	орр
Current progress	
Total progress	
Passwords checked:	1 997 590
	1 307 300
Cancel	

Preliminary attack consists of at least the following sub-attacks:

- **Common brute-force attack**. Performs several simple brute-force attacks based on predefined character sets.
- **Simple dictionary attack**. Fast check the password by verifying all words from a given dictionary.
- Extended dictionary attack. It's almost the same as above but with some smart mutation options set on.
- Attack on repeatables. Checking passwords as a repeatable sequence of a character. Eg. '1111111' or 'xxxxxxx'.
- Attack on simple patterns, like '123456' or 'qwerty'.
- Attack on complex patterns. The same as above, for compound patterns.
- **Keyboard attack** checks for keyboard passwords and all possible combinations. Eg. 'qwer', 'qazwsx', 'asdzxc', etc.
- **National keyboard attack**. The same as above, but checks passwords typed in national keyboard layout.
- **Complex keyboard attack** is the same as previous 2 attacks, for compound keyboard patterns.
- **Passcape Password Prediction attack** is the most complicated and state-of-art password prediction tool.

2.11.6.2.2 Artificial Intelligence attack

Artificial Intelligence Attack is a new type of attack developed in our company. It is based upon a social engineering method and has never been implemented in password recovery applications.

This attack allows, without resort to time-consuming and costly computations, to almost instantly recover certain passwords encrypted with hash functions. The basic idea behind the AI attack is that an average user very often chooses similar words and word combinations or follows the same password generation rule when creating one's passwords. With that in mind, we could attempt to figure that rule out and pick the original password.

Although this sounds somewhat abstractive, in the reality the attack clearly splits into four successive steps.

• Step 1. Initiating the collection of private data. Here comes into action the password retrieval and indexation module, which looks for all available and hidden in the system passwords entered by user at any moment of time. Those include network access passwords, ICQ, email, FTP, Windows account passwords, server passwords, etc.

- Step 2. Launches the data collection and indexation module. During the execution of this step, we analyze the activity of the user (or all users, if the indexation module selected is different than Light) in the system. Next, basing upon that, we generate the list of words potential passwords selected from the text files, archives, internet browsers' history, email correspondence, etc.
- Step 3. Includes the semantic analysis module for the database of found passwords and the list of potential passwords.
- Step 4. On the final stage, the data analysis module will perform the mutation of the words and attempt to pick the passwords.

In the beginning of the attack, the program will search the system for all passwords it knows of. For that purpose, there are currently 32 mini modules for decrypting system, mail, browser, messenger, archive and other passwords. Then there goes the file and data indexation, along the course of which the program generates a potential attack dictionary. The third module breaks the passwords and words into pieces, out of which in the last module it will assemble new combinations for picking and guessing the original password.

The Artificial Intelligence attack has proven itself to be most effective when searching for Windows account passwords; provided that the search is performed on the original system. The best (by the speed-quality ratio) attack settings are: Mutation – light, Indexation – normal. It is recommended to shut down all other applications before launching the AI attack.

📅 NPRW - Al attack	
NPRW - domain cache This is the most state-of-art and comprehen instantly. Setting all options to 'deep' will f	ed password decryption (step 3 of 4) sive solution for guessing passwords that can't be decrypted orce AI of the program to perform at highest possible level.
The Artificial Intelligence attack has prove passwords; provided that the search is per attack settings are: Password mutation - lig applications before launching the attack.	n itself to be most effective when searching for Windows account formed on the original system. The best (by the speed-quality ratio) ht, Indexation level - normal. It is recommended to close all other
Staustics	22
Password modules:	32
Password indexers:	14
Options	
Password mutation level:	Light (fast) 💌
Indexing level:	Normal (slow)
To continue, click 'Next'	
More	<< Back Next >> Exit

2.11.6.2.3 Dictionary attack options

All options are conditionally split into three groups: **dictionary list**, **password filter**, and **password mutations**.

	OPR - dictionary	attack on Mast	er Password			
Ple pas	ease select one or mo sword is found. If the	Dictionary att re dictionary files. Th dictionary was create	ack options (sto e program will try e ed with a DOS pro	e p 4 of 5) very word from gram, you sho	m the dictionarie ould set the OEM	s until your 1 option on.
ſ	Dictionary list					
	Dictionary name	Dictionary size	Passwords	OEM	Dictionary	Download
	🔽 opr.dic	3 910 691	352 009	No	E:\Program	Add
						Remove
						Change
						Select all
	<				>	Deselect all
	Total passwords to check: 352 009					
	Password filter Permit only words co Skip words containing	ntaining at least one g the following symbo	of the symbol(s): bl(s):			
	Smart mutations Enable smart muta	ation 🔿 We	ak	💿 Default	Os	trong
	To continue, click 'N	exť.				
(More			<< Back	Next >>	Exit

Dictionary list

In the first group of options, you must set at least one dictionary for the attack. If the dictionary was created with a DOS program, the option '*Dictionary file in DOS encoding*' must be selected when adding this dictionary to the list. After that, the new file will be added to the active dictionaries list. Please note: although a dictionary can appear on the list, it may remain inactive, i.e. not participate in the attack. To activate a dictionary, select the checkbox by its name. The program comes with a short English wordlist.

Password filter

To crop unnecessary passwords, you can use two simple filters. If you have set at least one character in the first '*Include*' filter, all passwords that do not contain that character will be ignored (skipped) by the program. The second '*Exclude*' filter is totally opposite. If you have set one or several characters in that filter, the program will skip passwords that contain at least one character specified in the filter.

Password mutations

The last group of options manages mutations for each PIN to be verified. You can set up to three mutation rules: *Weak* - less number of mutations and, in its turn, greater verification speed; *Strong* - for greater number of mutations, to the prejudice of the speed, and the happy medium, *Normal* option. Dictionary attack speed with **smart mutations** switched on is much slower then the normal mode (without mutations).

For *Weak* mutations - approximately 15 times slower. For *Normal* mutations - ~ 50 times slower. And for *Strong* mutations - ~130 times slower.

2.11.6.2.4 Brute-force attack options

As it was said above, this type of attack is the slowest. It must be used only if other attacks have failed to recover your InfoCard PIN. There are 3 group of options here.

😺 OPR - brute-force attack on	Master Password			
Brute-forc Guess the password by trying every sing also split this range	e attack options (step 4 of 5) le combination of characters from gi and share it between multiple com	ven charset range. You can		
Brute-force charset Lowercase Latin (az)	Uppercase Latin (AZ)	Digits (09)		
Special symbols (!@#)	All printable (ASCII 32127)	All (ASCII 1255)		
Custom charset	Load Save			
Charset (ASCII format):				
Charset (HEX format):				
Charset string: abcdefghijklmnop	qrstuvwxyz			
Password length and position				
Minimal length: 1	Starting password:			
Maximal length: 8	Total passwords to check: 217 18	30 147 158		
- Distributed attack				
Number of computers to participate:	1 🗘			
Password range for computer:	Computer 1: a zzzzzzz	×		
Brute-force attack options (step 4 of 5) Guess the password by type very single combination of characters from given charset range. You can also split this range and share it between multiple computers. Brute-force charset Digits (09) Special symbols (!@4#) All printable (ASCII 32127) Custom charset Load Charset (ASCII format): Charset (MEX format): Charset t(HEX format): Charset time: Password length and position Minimal length: Maximal length: 8 © Total passwords to check: 217 180 147 158 Distributed attack Number of computers to participate: Number of computers to participate: 1 © Password range for computer: Computer 1: a zzzzzzzz To continue, click 'Next'. Kext >>				
More	<< <u>B</u> ack	Next >> Exit		

Brute-force charset

Brute-force attack assumes using all possible variations from the specified character range, which is set in the first group of options. You can select and combine predefined character sets (e.g., Latin characters, numbers or special characters) or define your own ones. To define your own character set, select the option '*Custom charset*'. This will enable two fields for defining a custom character set: the first one - for entering ASCII or OEM characters, second one - for entering non-printable characters. You can save your custom character set on disk. The program comes with several examples of user-defined character sets.

Password length and position

The second group of options allows setting the minimum and maximum lengths of the password to be generated. If the last brute-force attack was interrupted or stopped, you can resume it from the last position saved by the program (see '*Starting password*' option.)

Distributed attack

This group of options can be useful when you have access to several computers. In this case, the entire set of characters to be verified, if it is too large, can be split into portions and attack the PIN by portions on several computers at the same time. To implement that, you will need to select the number of computers participating in the distributed attack (option '*Number of computers to participate*'), select the same settings on all computers, and assign each computer its serial number (in the combo box '*Password range for computer*'.) When all that is done, you can launch the attacks.

2.11.6.2.5 Mask attack options

😺 OPR - mask attacl	k on Master Password			
Specify a password mask	Mask attack options (to decrease the total number of program's manual to read more	s tep 4 of 5) passwords to be ve on mask syntax.	erified. Please re	efer to the
Password mask				
Mask:	loveme%c%c%c%c%c%c			Load
Password range:	lovemeaaaaaa lovemezzzz	2	(Save
Total passwords:	308 915 776		ĺ	Clear
Dictionary generator Dictionary file size:	~ 4 125 Mb		(Generate
%% - static chara %c - lower-case %C - upper-case %H - full set of sp %@ - small set of %? - all printable %d - one digit (0 %d(x-y) - numbers be	acter % Latin characters (az) Latin characters (AZ) becial characters (!~ space) special characters (!@#\$%^%*() characters with ASCII codes of 9) etween x and y inclusive	+= space) 32127		
To continue, click 'Ne	ď.			
More		<< Back	Next >>	Exit

The entry field is used for setting the mask (rule), by which the program will try to recover the PIN. If the mask is set correctly, below you will see the range of characters generated by the mask. User-defined masks can be saved on disk. The program also allows generating dictionary by mask; however, this option is only available in the registered version of the program.

The password mask consists of static (not changing) characters and special sets - dynamically changing letters, numbers or symbols.

For example, in the mask '**secret%d(1-100)**', the characters 's' 'e' 'c' 'r' 'e' 't' are static, and '%d(1-100)' is the dynamical set. A dynamical set is marked (start) with % character.

The program supports the following dynamical sets:

- **%c** lower-case Latin characters (a..z), total 26 symbols
- **%C** upper-case Latin characters (A..Z), total 26 symbols
- *%#* full set of special characters (!..~ space), total 33 symbols
- %@ small set of special characters (!@#\$%^&*()-_+= space), total 15 symbols
- %? all printable characters with ASCII codes of 32..127
- **%d** one digit (0..9)
- %d(x-y) numbers between x and y inclusive

%r(x-y) - user-defined characters with serial ASCII codes between x and y

%r(x1-y1,x2-y2...xn-yn) - set of several non-overlapping sequences of ASCII characters. Useful for defining custom character sets; e.g., of OEM characters.

- %(n) link to another set from mask (1 based)
- %% standalone static character %

% allows setting character sets for national languages. For instance, the mask % (160-175,241-241,224-239) (160-175,241-241,224-239) will generate the password row of Russian characters, total 33*33=1089 passwords.

Examples: test%d - will generate password range test0..test9, 10 passwords total test%d(1980-2007) - test1980..test2007, 28 passwords test%r(48-57,97-122) - test0..testz, 36 passwords %#test%# - _test_..~test~, 1089 passwords %d(1-12)%r(45-47)%d(1-31)%l(2)%d(1980-2010) - 1-1-1980..12/31/2010, 34596 passwords %c%r(32-63)%c%l(2)%c%l(2)%c - a_a_a.z?z?z - 14623232 passwords

Important! When setting %r, keep in mind that the range of defined OEM characters (with character code greater than 127) is generated using the DOS encoding.

2.11.6.2.6 Base-word attack options

Base-word attack is an irreplaceable recovery tool when you know a portion of the PIN or its basic component.

🔽 OPR - base-word attack on Master Password 📃 🗖 🔀
Base-word attack options (step 4 of 5) To decrease the total number of passwords to be verified, you should specified a word or a phrase the password may consist of. Please refer to the program's manual to read more on the base-word attack
CKnown part of the password
Please, type a word or a phrase the password may consist of. For example, you know that your password was formed on the word 'slowdriver'. Type this base-word and start the attack. The program will try all possible combinations to extract the real password from this word. Just imagine that it uses over 150 rules in 15 smart mutation groups. Thus in our example the program will generate thousands mutated phrases and will be able to find 'freaked' passwords like SlowDriver, Slowdriver123, SLoWDRiVer, S10wDr1v3r, and many others.
A part of the passwords: slowdriver
Use only case mutation
Total combinations: 6 424
Dictionary generator Dictionary file size: ~ 87 Kb Generate
To continue, click 'Next'.
More << Back Next >> Exit

Normally, such cases dispose to using mask attack; however, it does not always allow coping with the task set forth. Suppose our PIN was 'S10wDr1v3r'.

Trying to recover such a complicated password using brute-force attack would be an ungrateful job, even if you are quite sure that it is based upon the '**slowdriver**' phrase. These are the cases when the baseword attack will rescue you.

With this tool, the program will attempt to recover the original PIN, trying all possible combinations founded upon 15 groups of rules (total over 140 rules.)

If you enter '**slowdriver**' in the field, you will see that the program has generated several thousands of different combinations upon this phrase , and one of those combinations will match our password.

Enter the word or pass-phrase prototypal to your InfoCard PIN.

Important! If the length of the phrase exceeds 8-10 characters, the mutation may take significant time. If you remember the original password precisely and simply have forgotten the sequence of the uppercase and lower-case characters in it, you can select the option '*Use only case mutations*'. With this option selected, the program will generate passwords with all possible combinations of upper-case and lower-case characters, total 2ⁿ passwords, where n - is password length. For example, for the password '*slowdriver*' the program will generate 2ⁿ10=1024 different combinations.

2.11.6.2.7 Combined dictionary attack options

This type of attack on difficult and compound passwords is very similar to the simple dictionary attack, except that instead of using a single word for password verification here we use a combination of words or a phrase created by combining words from specified dictionaries.

😡 OPR - combined o	dictionary attack 📃 🗖 🔀
Co This type of attack ger Additionally yo	mbined dictionary attack options (step 4 of 5) nerates password phrases by combining words from the given dictionaries. ou can set different mutation rules to create pass-phrase variations.
Dictionaries	
Primary	E:\Program Files\Passcape\UPH\combdic_opr.pcd
🗹 Secondary 2	E:\Program Files\Passcape\OPR\knuth.pcd
Secondary 3	E:\Program Files\Passcape\OPR\combdic_opr.pcd
Secondary 4	
Pass-phrase generation Use final phrase con string1=firstupper string string1=firstupper string string1=lower stringN= string1=firstupper string	n rules nbinations by setting different mutation rules gN=lower gN=firstupper lower delimiter=t20 gN=lower delimiter=t20 gN=firstupper delimiter=t20 Remove
Statistics Total passwords:	2 215 490
Becommended dictiona	aru size: D <size<32863 average="" current="" dictionaru="" size="1820</th"></size<32863>
Dictionary size (in string:	s): prim=70, sec2=7894, combinations=6
More	<pre><< Back Next >> Exit</pre>

The purpose of the first group of option is to set and choose the source material for our attack. For a start, we are to specify at least 2 dictionaries. To understand how the combined attack works, let's take a look at a couple of password generation examples that involve, in the first case, the same dictionary and in the second case – two different ones.

1. Suppose we've got a single dictionary with three words: aaa, bbb, and ccc. We will set this dictionary as two original sources: primary dictionary & secondary dictionary2 (see the figure). After these dictionaries have been processed, at the output we have the following phrases (they will be used when checking the password sought): 'aaa aaa', 'aaa bbb', 'aaa ccc' 'bbb aaa', 'bbb bbb', 'bbb ccc' 'ccc aaa', 'ccc bbb', 'ccc ccc'.

9 phrases total.

2. In the second case, we have got two different dictionaries. For example, the first dictionary consists of three words: aaa, bbb, and ccc. The second one also has three words: ddd, eee, fff. In this case, we are going to have the following phrases: 'aaa ddd', 'aaa eee', 'aaa fff' 'bbb ddd', 'bbb eee', 'bbb fff' 'ccc ddd', 'ccc eee', 'ccc fff'.

The example is plain but demonstrative. The idea is that for multiple sources you can successfully use both a single dictionary and multiple ones. It all depends on your imagination. The last example shows that a special attention should be paid to the order of the dictionaries if they are different. The order of the words in the phrases to be created depends directly on the order of the source dictionaries. In our second example, if we swap the primary and the secondary dictionaries, at the output we will obtain a completely different set of phrases: 'ddd aaa, 'ddd bbb', 'ddd ccc',

'eee aaa, 'eee bbb', 'eee ccc', 'fff aaa, 'fff bbb', 'fff ccc'.

Combined attack sets a certain limit to the number of dictionaries that can be used; that's not more than 4. Thus, the general limitation of this attack is that only password phrases of not more than 4 words can be recovered using this attack.

Another essential drawback is the wide range of phrases generated. And, as the consequence, the proportional increase of the time spent on the validation of a password. Therefore, you should be careful when selecting the size of source dictionaries, especially for 3 and 4-word combinations.

The next group of options is in charge of creating all possible combinations of phrases. By default, if no password generation parameter based upon mutation rules is set, the program will create passwords by simply concatenating words from the source dictionaries, WITHOUT separating them with spaces. However, you can set your rules as well. For example, have it create phrases with spaces, begin words with caps, append numbers, etc. There are special rules available for this purpose; you don't have to know the syntax of them, for the mutation rule creation dialog is simple and intuitive.

Add/modify rule		×
Please set/c	hange the pass-phrase generation rule	2
Rule tags		
Prefix	none	*
First word	first char is upper, the rest are lower	*
Word delimiter	text	~
The rest words	all chars are lower	~
Postfix	text	~
	!	
Rule: string1=firstupper delin Example: I love my compute	niter=t20 stringN=lower tail=t2021 er !, total invariants=1	
(OK Cancel	

Each mutation rule consists of five elements:

- 1. **Prefix** text that will appear before each phrase. This element can be a character, plain text string, one digit between 0 and 9 or a number. For instance, if you set a one-digit prefix, the phrases created with this rules will look as follows: '0 aaa bbb', '1 aaa bbb' ... '9 aaa bbb'.
- First word the action to be performed over the first word of each phrase. There are only four options. Namely: leave intact as is in dictionary, convert all characters to lowercase, convert all characters to uppercase or capitalize only the first letter of the word.
- 3. **Word separator**. It may be absent. Then all the words will be concatenated. Example: 'aaabbb', 'aaaccc','aaaddd', etc. You can otherwise set a custom separator; e.g. the '-' character: 'aaa-bbb', 'aaa-ccc','aaa-ddd'.
- 4. **Other words**. With this attribute, similarly to 2., you can set rules for the other words of a phrase.
- 5. **Postfix** text that will finalize each phrase. For example, if you set Postfix to the '?' or '?', all phrases created with this rule will have the question mark at the end.

Naturally, the more mutation rules you set, the wider is the range of phrases you generate, and the more chances you get for the successful recovery of the original password. On the other hand, if the range is large enough, when searching through the entire range may take half an hour or more, the program will highlight the statistics text with red color. There's no reason to be afraid of that. Simply select one of the source dictionaries of a smaller size or decline from some mutation rules or, leave everything the way it is.

The 'Statistics' group shows the average and recommended average size of a dictionary, number of words in source dictionaries, total number of passwords being generated and other helpful information.

Let's take a look at a specific task. Suppose, we are to find a password of three words, the first one of which is 'nothing' with some punctuation mark at the end. Here is our plan:

You can also download additional dictionary modules from the Passcape Software Web site.

2.11.6.2.8 Phrase attack options

Pass-phrase attack is an essential password recovery tool, which can hardly be overestimated. The idea of the attack is to guess the right password by searching through predefined frequently used expressions, phrases and word combinations. Similar to the simple dictionary attack, from the source dictionary we sequentially take a phrase and attempt to match with the original password.

U	OPR - pass-phra	se attack on	Master Passwor	d		
Р	lease select at least o dictionary to validate I	Pass-phras ne pass-phrase (he original pass)	e attack options dictionary. The progr word. Phrase genera	(step 4 of 5) am will check e ition is based o	every pass-phras n different mutat	se from the 🗾
ſ	Pass-phrase dictionar	ies list				
	Dictionary	Size	Phrases	OEM	Dictionary	Download
	🗹 phrases.dic	935 519	51 892	No	E:\Program	Add
						Remove
						Change
						Select all
						Deselect all
	<				>	Inverse selection
	Total pass-phrases to	check: 51	892			
ſ	Mutation (password g	eneration) optior	15]
	🔿 Low (fast)	C	🔿 Normal	(⊙ High (slow)	
т	o continue, click 'Nex	e.				
0	More		(<< Back	Next >>	Exit

More and more users choose to make up their pass phrases of entire phrases, passages from poems, movie aphorisms, Latin aphorisms, etc. Attempting to recover such passwords using the traditional techniques is unthinkable, even with the reference to the advancement of the computing power of modern computers. Therefore, the recovery help comes with the predefined and known phrase attack.

It wouldn't be an overestimation to say that 99 percent of the success in the recovery of a password with a dictionary attack depends on the quality of the dictionaries. Most likely, that is the reason why this type of attacks doesn't appear in just about any password cracker. Passcape Software allows utilizing a whole set of <u>online</u> and <u>offline dictionaries</u> (totally over 500 MB) compiled specially for this type of attack.

The password-phrase attack options almost completely repeat the simple dictionary attack options: here, you also are to select one or several dictionaries for the phrase source, it also allows loading additional dictionaries from the Passcape website, and it has the same way for setting phrase mutation rules (creating alternative options).

Mutation is worth saying more, since as you should have known strong mutation significantly raises chances for the successful recovery. Weak mutation is normally justified in only one case: for increasing the attack speed or when using dictionaries of large sizes. Medium mutation is a normal balance between the operating speed and the number of generated password phrases. Strong mutation allows finding more difficult passwords by generating the widest range of all possible combinations, to the prejudice of the search speed. For instance, English phrases typed using the national keyboard layout, abbreviations, etc.

The program comes with a short dictionary of phrases and aphorisms.

2.11.6.3 Launching the selected attack

This step of the recovery Wizard launches the attack you have selected and gathers and displays its statistics. Click '*Start*' to launch the attack.

9	NPRW - brute-for	ce attack on InfoCard pas	sword	
	Pres	NPR₩ - manual m s 'Start' button to begin the a	node (step 9 of 10) attack and find your lost passw	vord.
	Statictics			
	Current password:	gf2jd0	Passwords skipped:	0
	Passwords total:	2 238 976 116	Passwords checked:	84 918 401
	Time elapsed:	0m:48s	Time left:	20m:27s
	Current speed:	1 650 198	Average speed:	1 755 419
	-			
	Click 'Stop' to termina	ate		
	More		<< <u>B</u> ack	<u>Stop</u>

Please keep in mind that if you have selected a pretty long phrase (in the phrase attack), the preparation to the attack may take some time.

Later, if the PIN you were looking for is found, the program will notify you of that with the alert you have specified and copy the password to clipboard.

At this moment, the speed of the brute-force attack is ~5 mln. passwords/sec on a modern computer.

2.11.7 Decrypted private data

Decrypted private data

So, if the luck has shined, and the PIN has been recovered, you can move on to the recovery of private data in the selected InfoCard. The application Wizard's final dialog with decrypted claims looks like the figure below.

Right click on the lis	InfoCard decrypted data tbox to view context menu. Click on a column header to sort the list.	
Card name:	Card2	
Card PIN:	<no pin=""></no>	
Card image:	<u>click here to view</u>	
Field name	Value	-
First Name	Huan	
Last Name	Pedro-Gomes	
Email Address	someone@passcape.com	
Street	somewhere far away	=
City	Huano-gano	
State		
Postal Code	333111	
Country/Region	Gvadelupa	
Home Phone Number		
Other Phone Number	noop	
4		b.
Beport Copy	Save	

Personal Informion Card, as it has been stated above, contains a permanent set of personal data. Below is the list of all claims available in Personal Information Card along with their **Uniform Resource Identifiers**.

Claim	Uniform Resource Identifier	Description
First Name	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/200	This attribute is used to hold the part of a person's name
	5/05/identity/claims/givenname	which is not their
		surname nor middle name.
Last Name	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/200	This is the X.500 surname attribute which contains the family
	5/05/identity/claims/surname	name of a person.
Email	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/200	This attribute type specifies an electronic mailbox attribute
Address	5/05/identity/claims/emailaddress	following the syntax
		specified in RFC 822.
Street	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/200	The physical address of the object to which the entry
Address	5/05/identity/claims/streetaddress	corresponds, such as an address for package delivery.
Locality	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/200	This attribute contains the name of a locality, such as a city,
Name or	5/05/identity/claims/locality	county or other geographic region.
City		
State or	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/200	The full name of a state or province. The values should be
Province	5/05/identity/claims/stateorprovince	coordinated on a national level and if well-known shortcuts
		exist - like the two-letter state abbreviations in the US - these
		abbreviations are preferred
		over longer full names.

Postal	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/200	The postal code attribute type specifies the postal code of the
Code	5/05/identity/claims/postalcode	named object. If this attribute value is present, it will be part of the object's postal address - zip code in USA, postal code for other countries.
Country	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/200 5/05/identity/claims/country	Contains a two-letter ISO 3166 country code.
Primary or Home Telephone Number	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/200 5/05/identity/claims/homephone	Specifies a home telephone number associated with a person.
Secondary or Work Telephone Number	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/200 5/05/identity/claims/otherphone	This attribute type specifies an office/campus telephone number associated with a person.
Mobile Telephone Number	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/200 5/05/identity/claims/mobilephone	Specifies a mobile telephone number associated with a person.
Date of Birth	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/200 5/05/identity/claims/dateofbirth	The date of birth of a subject in a form allowed by the date data type.
Gender	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/200 5/05/identity/claims/gender	Gender of a subject that can have any of these exact string values: 0 - meaning unspecified, 1 - meaning Male or 2 - meaning Female. Using these values allows them to be language neutral.
Private Personal Identifier	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/200 5/05/identity/claims/privatepersonali dentifier	A private personal identifier (PPID) that identifies the subject to a relying party. The word "private" is used in the sense that the subject identifier is specific to a given relying party and hence private to that relying party. A subject's PPID at one relying party cannot be correlated with the subject's PPID at another relying party. Typically, the PPID should be generated by an identity provider as a pair-wise pseudonym for a subject for a given relying party. For a self-issued information card, the self-issued identity provider in an identity selector system should generate a PPID for each relying party as a function of the card identifier and the relying party's identity.
Web Page	http://schemas.xmlsoap.org/ws/200 5/05/identity/claims/webpage	The Web page of a subject expressed as a URL.

2.12 Asterisks password revealer

What is asterisks password revealer

This tool allows to recover passwords hidden behind asterisks. It is often helpful when you need to quickly recall a **** password and don't have the necessary recovery tools handy. This tool also operates in two modes:

- Manual, where you would have to drag the magic magnifier from the NPRW window to the field with asterisks.
- Automatic, where the recovery application will automatically search for all the **** fields in all open windows on your desktop.

Both cases assume a number of restrictions. Well, is there anything good out there that does not have any restrictions?

- with such applications. Those include Opera, Mozilla, Firefox, etc.
 Some websites have a built-in protection, which hides either the garbage or the actual asterisks behind the asterisk characters * (asterisks hidden behind asterisks!).
- In some Windows system dialogs asterisks also hide the * character and not the real password. But that happens mainly because Windows stores the majority of its passwords as hash rather than as plain text. Hence, there is just nothing to hide there.
- To ensure the proper operation of this tool, you are to have the administrator privileges. In Windows Vista, make sure that the option '*Run this program as an administrator*' on the application shortcut's context menu is enabled.

Manual recovery mode

Just drop the magnifying glass to the **** field.

🗧 for ddd\		
	MPRW - asterisks password	d revealer (manual mode)
o.s.com Properties ? 🗙	NPRW You can reveal passwords that are hid over the	/ asterisks password revealer Iden behind the """" edit boxes. Please, drag the magnifying glass
ver Informationy incoming mail server is a IMAP server. coming mail (IMAP): imao.s.com utgoing mail (SMTP): imao.s.com ming Mail Server	Pi Dr to so	un a program (or switch to a window) containing asterisks passwords. rag the magnifying glass over the ^{soore} passwords. If the program is able reveal the passwords, they will be shown in NPRW window. Please ote, some programs are not supported by NPRW (eg. Opera, Firefox, me applications written in Java, etc.).] Check to set this window topmost
assword:	Status Mouse position: 🕅 Password available: 🕫 Window title: 🖸	=607, Y=469 es utlook Express
poing Mail Server	Current password(s)	
OK Cancel Apply	More	C Back Next>> Exit

Automatic mode

Or let the program do it.

🚾 NPRW - asterisks password revealer (auto mode)	
NPRW asterisks password revealer By clicking 'Start' you'll launch the asterisks scanner. It will search all desktop windows for availa asterisks fields and reveal them if possible.	ble
Run a program containing asterisks passwords and click 'Start' to run asterisk scanner. If the pro to retrieve the asterisks, they will be revealed and shown in the log window (highlighted in green) note that some programs are still not supported (eg. Opera, Firefox, some applications written in J value (Mathematically copy last found password to the clipboard	igram is able). Please Iava, etc.).
Asterisks revealer log	
Checking Zero Alem County Alem Checking X DPRW Checking Z Ch	Stop
- Checking 'Adobe Photoshop'	Lopy
- Checking 'mmm.ms.com Properties'	Save
Found password 'pass 1' in 'Outlook Express' Checking 'Internet Accounts'	Clear
Click Stop to cancel	
More << Back Next >>	Exit

2.13 Server emulators (POP3, IMAP, SMTP, FTP, NNTP)

What is virtual server

When switching an e-mail client to another, buying a new computer or reinstalling the operating system, chances to lose or forget the password to your e-mail account are great. **Virtual e-mail server** is a universal tool for recovering lost e-mail account passwords when the standard recovery tools are difficult or cannot be used for one reason or the other.

Virtual e-mail server emulates the mail server and intercepts all calls made by the e-mail client to it. When you send or receive your e-mail, your e-mail client connects to the mail server and submits your e-mail account's credentials (normally that's a login and password). Thus, the virtual server can capture and display that information to you. The software supports <u>ALL</u> e-mail clients that use the protocols **POP3**, **IMAP** and **SMTP**, such as MS Outlook Express, MS Outlook, Firefox, Thunderbird, Opera Mail, TheBat!, IncrediMail, Eudora, etc. Please note that the virtual server can recover only logins or passwords that are stored locally on your computer, in your e-mail application.

Virtual **FTP** and **NNTP** (news reader) servers are pretty much similar to the virtual e-mail server; therefore, the majority of what has been said about the virtual e-mail server applies to FTP/NNTP.

Emulator restrictions

A virtual e-mail server has a number of restrictions:

- It is unable to recover passwords to web-based email accounts or to e-mail accounts operating over HTTP.
- Despite the great number of authentication methods supported by the virtual server (e.g., CRAM-MD5 or NTLMv1), in some cases the instant recovery is impossible because the e-mail client does not submit the password itself; instead, it submits the password hash.
- Some authentication types are not supported by **Network Password Recovery Wizard**. Those, for example, include SPA, widely used in Microsoft products. However, in the majority of cases that restriction can be overridden (we will cover this issue a bit later).
- Some e-mail applications do not strictly follow the standard protocols IMAP, POP3 and SMTP. Those, for instance, include Outlook Express 4-6. Unfortunately, each new version of this popular application adopts new features that demand different workarounds.
- Some e-mail clients, despite the strict RFC regulations, use their own authentication mechanisms, not supported by NPRW.
- Each e-mail client acts by its own communication scenario when opening a connection session. Some applications demand the highest security level right off, regardless to the account settings. Others, the other way around, ignore the authentication type and parameters, failing to provide the required security level, transmitting personal information as plain text. There are even applications that do not support some of the declared authentication types at all.

Implementation

Virtual server has two ways of implementation:

- 1. Manual operating mode
- 2. Automatic mode

If the **manual mode** is selected, user is to configure:

First, the e-mail account in the e-mail client application. For that purpose, open the account properties, take a note of the server's address, replace it with **127.0.0.1** or **localhost** and then save the account. Once the password is (or is not) recovered, the noted server address is to be returned to its original, lawful place.

Second, in virtual server properties in NPRW, set the necessary protocol port (the application will automatically set the value used by default in the majority of cases) and the extended authentication support if necessary.

Before launching the virtual server, you are recommended to close all other applications' windows. Here is the algorithm of your actions when using the manual operating mode of the virtual server:

- 1. Launch your e-mail application.
- 2. Open properties for the account which password you want to restore.

3. Take a note of the incoming (if you need to recover a POP3 or IMAP account password) or outgoing (for SMTP passwords) server address and then replace it with **localhost**. Take a note of the protocol being used: POP3, IMAP or SMTP.

4. Save the new account settings. In some cases, you may also need to restart your e-mail application.

5. Open the NPRW virtual server and then enter the noted protocol address to it (from the account properties).

6. Launch the virtual server by clicking on the 'Start' button.

Switch to your e-mail application and check your e-mail. If you need to recover an SMTP password, try to send an e-mail message instead. The message text and recipient address don't matter.
 If all these steps have been completed properly, NPRW should 'catch' your login and password for this account.

9. If you have the additional authentication setting enabled in your account, you can try playing with the *'Extended authentication support*' option in NPRW. Or temporarily disable the additional

authentication in the account's settings. However, you should aware that some applications, including Outlook Express, can easily reset the password itself along with this option's setting.10. Repeat steps 1-9 if necessary.

nt properties		🖉 Voice 📑 Author mode 🔻 🔊 Cached images
		🕎 NPRW - POP3 mail server emulator
eral Servers Inco	ming Outgoing	NPRW - POP3 mail server emulator
	Incoming POP server	Click 'Start' to run emulator. Open e-mail account properties, replace server address with '127.0.0.1' and save it. Rerun e-mail client and receive mail. The password of this account should be caught by NPRW.
ver	localhost	Virtual server settings
't number	110 Secare connection (TLS)	PDP3 port 110 Set to defau. PDP3 server: localhost What's this?
thentication	Plaintext 📃 👻	
ername	test	Extended authentication support
sword	****	Virtual server log
		Start
	Outgoing SMTP server	
ver	mail.passcape.com	Conu
t number	25 Secure connection (TLS)	Save
hentication	None	
rname		Click Start to run emulator
culord		
,sword		More << Back Next >> Exit
	OK Cancel Help	Click to add web page Click to add we

The virtual server's **automatic mode** is a bit simpler in the operation and does not require any changes in the original e-mail account. However, you will need to know the mail server address (POP3, IMAP or SMTP, depending on the type of the virtual server you are running). It must be exactly the same as in the account settings. Oftentimes, the server address is identical to the e-mail address minus user name. For example, for the e-mail address user@mydomain.com, the server address is likely to be mydomain.com, mail.mydomain.com, pop.mydomain.com, pop3.mydomain.com, imap.mydomain.com, smtp.mydomain.com, etc. You can also enter the server's IP instead; e.g., 212.178.125.13. Briefly, here is the algorithm of your actions when using the automatic mode:

1. Open the virtual server window and enter the original server address and port number. By default, the POP3 protocol uses port 110, IMAP - 143, and SMTP - 25.

2. Click '*Start*' to launch the emulator. If you have any anti-virus or anti-spyware software running, on this step you may get a system configuration change and/or protocol anchor attempt warning. Don't worry; when we are done, NPRW will restore the original configuration. Allow (maybe temporarily) the anchoring to the protocol and the change of the original configuration and continue to the next step.

3. If the e-mail application is already running, please close it and then restart it all over. Then try to check your e-mail (or send a blank message in the case of SMTP). If everything has been completed properly, the NPRW virtual server's log must contain the original account's login and password (it will be highlighted with the green color). Please note that in the case of an IMAP server you may have to read your IMAP folders all over. In Outlook Express that's the '*IMAP Folders*' button or the '*Tools -> IMAP Folders*' menu.

4. If you have the additional authentication setting enabled in your account, you can try to disable the '*Extended authentication support*' option in NPRW. In some cases, it may be helpful to temporarily disable the additional authentication in the account's settings. However, you should remember that some applications can reset the password itself along with this option's setting.

5. Repeat steps 1-5 if necessary.

🖙 NPRW - IMAP mail server emulator								
NPRW - IMAP mail server emulator Enter IMAP port and server address, click start to run emulator. Then run your favourite e-mail program and try to recieve mail. Switch back to NPRW. The login and password should be caught there.								
⊖ Virtual server settings	Virtual server settings							
IMAP port: 143	Set to default							
IMAP server: imap.passcape.com	What's this ?							
 Extended authe Always on top Virtual IMAP mail s Waiting for inco Connected, sei Sending capat LOGIN authen 	Start							
O Login: john 2	Сору							
- Closing virtual session	Save							
Contraction of the second seco	Clear							
Click Start to run emulator								
More << Back Next >>	Exit							

Using the virtual NNTP or FTP server is completely identical to using the e-mail server. You just need to enter the nntp or ftp server address and attempt to connect to it from your news reader or ftp client.

2.14 Recovering passwords from hashes

When recovering certain types of passwords - for instance, Domain cached credentials - the major question is: How to organize the recovery process - which attack should I start with to raise the probability of its successful completion?

For choosing the type and the sequence of the attacks, we advise to follow this algorithm, which is applicable in the majority of cases to all types of passwords to be recovered:

- First, enable the preliminary attack option, if it is available. It will help to recover simple and frequently used combinations.
- Second, if you are aware of any specifics of the password you are looking for, it's better to try mask attack or base-word attack first. Specifically, if you know a part of the password - using mask attack would be more effective. If you know the basic component of the password or, for example, know the password but don't remember the sequence of caps and lowercase characters in it, base-word attack would do the job better.
- Third, if you have no information on the password you are looking for, which occurs most frequently, be guided by the following sequence of steps:
 - 1. Run AI attack with mutation and indexing options set to light.

- 2. If it fails to find the password, just try again and set mutation option to 'normal' and indexing to 'deep' levels.
- 3. Launch dictionary attack with the mutation option disabled.
- 4. Launch dictionary attack with the mutation option enabled; the depth of mutation depends on the amount of available time and the attack speed. When searching for passwords typed in the national keyboard layout, the depth of mutation should be set to strong.
- 5. Select and download online dictionaries and repeat steps 3 4.
- 6. Launch pass-phrase attack with the mutation option disabled.
- 7. Launch pass-phrase attack with the mutation option enabled and set to the maximum productivity. This will allow finding passwords typed in the national keyboard layout.
- 8. Select and download online pass-phrase dictionaries and repeat steps 6 7.
- 9. Launch combined dictionary attack with defined phrase generation rules.
- 10. Select and download online dictionaries for combined attack and repeat step 9.
- 11. Select a charset for brute-force attack, launch the attack.
- 12. If necessary, select a new or complete the old character set and repeat the brute-force attack; i.e. step 11.

2.15 Loading online dictionaries

The online dictionary selection dialog is extremely simple. When it opens up, the program attempts to establish a connection with the Passcape Software server and then retrieves and displays the list of dictionaries available for downloading.

	Download online dictionary						
	Please select a	dictionary to	download U	lse mouse + (Ctrl or SI	hift for multiple s	election. 🛛 📓
[Dictionary name	Download	Real size	Strings	Ratio	Group	Copyright 🔼
	African.pcd	268 Kb	1 Mb	137821	16%	01 - Languages	Passcape S
	American.pcd	82 Kb	399 Kb	45392	20%	01 - Languages	Passcape S
	Australian.pcd	53 Kb	926 Kb	79409	5%	01 - Languages	Passcape S
	Brizilian.pcd	89 Kb	1 Mb	129338	6%	01 - Languages	Passcape S
	Chinese.pcd	1 КЬ	5 Kb	802	32%	01 - Languages	Passcape S
	Croatian.pcd	80 Kb	607 Kb	56558	13%	01 - Languages	Passcape S
	Czech.pcd	377 КЬ	3 Mb	309365	11%	01 - Languages	Passcape S
	Danish.pcd	614 КЬ	7 Mb	564295	8%	01 - Languages	Passcape S
	Dutch.pcd	393 Kb	2 Mb	245688	12%	01 - Languages	Passcape S
	English.pcd	6 Mb	36 Mb	3540673	17%	01 - Languages	Passcape S
	Finnish.pcd	931 Kb	6 Mb	480570	14%	01 - Languages	Passcape S
	French.pcd	275 КЬ	3 Mb	320033	7%	01 - Languages	Passcape S
	German.pcd	2 Mb	20 Mb	1786211	12%	01 - Languages	Passcape S
	Hungarian.pcd	47 КЬ	187 Kb	18013	25%	01 - Languages	Passcape S 🐱
	<)	>
	🐴 Please select a	dictionary to do	wnload			Total files: 254 , to Suggest	otal size: 1 398 Mb
					_		your own dictionary
		Update	list	Download		Cancel	

For more convenience, you can order the list by name, size of source or compressed file, group it belongs to, etc.

Select the dictionary you need and then click on the 'Download' button to retrieve it and use in the program.

Some of the dictionaries are large. For instance, the size of 'music_songs.pcd' is more than 59 MB in the compressed format. Naturally, retrieving such a large amount of data may take some time, which depends upon file size, bandwidth of your Internet connection and net load.

All online (and some additional) dictionaries can be ordered on CD. The total size of all the dictionaries is over 1GB. You can also share your own dictionary with us by e-mailing us the dictionary or the link where it can be downloaded.

2.16 Setting a Program Access Password

Setting an access password can help to avoid the program execution by unauthorized persons. To open the "Set Access Password" dialog box, click 'more...' (in the NPRW main window) and select 'Set/change access password' from the popup menu.

Program access passw	vord	×	
Settting the program access password Set the access password to prevent the program execution by unauthorized personal.			
Access password: Confirm password:	××× ××× I Hide characters as I type		
	<u>C</u> ancel		

To set an access password, you have to enter a new password and confirm it by retyping it in the confirmation field.

Remember! The access password is case-sensitive.

To remove the current password, leave the password fields blank.

Next time you run the program, you will be asked for the password as shown below:

Program access password required	×		
Enter the program access password Please enter access password to run the program.	-		
Access password			
✓ Hide characters as I type			
<u>D</u> K			

Type in your current password and click **OK** to run the program.

2.17 Program Interface Language

You can change the program interface language and download your native language from our web server. Just select **Download from Internet...** from the **Interface Language** drop-down list as shown below.



After that the program will try to establish a connection to the Passcape server and download the list of language files available for the program. We guarantee that nothing will be sent to Passcape (or to anybody else) from your computer.

So you'll see the language selection dialog box where you can select an interface language and download it.

Download a program interface language						
Use mouse + Ctrl or Shift for multiple selection						
Language	Author					
Dutch French Macedonian Russian Traditional Chinese	1.2.4 1.2.4 1.2.4 1.3.6 1.2.4	Rob Mens <robinmens@pando Tony Vichamp <coding_tony@ Goran Andonov <jetset@freem Kovalev Igor <icoval@mail.ru> Cheung Tat-Ming <mcpming@< th=""><th></th></mcpming@<></icoval@mail.ru></jetset@freem </coding_tony@ </robinmens@pando 				
Please, select a language to download Download Cancel						

Already downloaded and installed languages are marked with \checkmark sign.

If you can translate the interface of the program into some other language, your help will be really appreciated. Translate the program into your native language and get the program registration for free! <u>Contact us</u> for more information.

License and registration

3 License and registration

3.1 License Agreement

SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT

IMPORTANT-READ CAREFULLY: This is the End User License Agreement (the "Agreement") is a legal agreement between you, the end-user, and Passcape Software, the manufacturer and the copyright owner, for the use of the "Network Password Recovery Wizard" software product ("SOFTWARE").

All copyrights to SOFTWARE are exclusively owned by Passcape Software.

The SOFTWARE and any documentation included in the distribution package are protected by national copyright laws and international treaties. Any unauthorized use of the SOFTWARE shall result in immediate and automatic termination of this license and may result in criminal and/or civil prosecution.

You are granted a non-exclusive license to use the SOFTWARE as set forth herein.

You can use trial version of SOFTWARE as long as you want, but to access all functions you must purchase the fully functional version. Upon payment we provide the registration code to you.

Once registered, the user is granted a non-exclusive license to use the SOFTWARE on one computer at a time (for every single-user license purchased).

With the personal license, you can use the SOFTWARE as set forth in this Agreement for noncommercial purposes in non-business, non-commercial environment. To use the SOFTWARE in a corporate, government or business environment, you should purchase a business license. With the business license you can run the SOFTWARE on multiple computers within a single site. A multi site license authorizes you to install and use the SOFTWARE to any number of computers belonging to your organization - no matter where they are located.

The registered SOFTWARE may not be rented or leased, but may be permanently transferred together with the accompanying documentation, if the person receiving it agrees to terms of this license. If the software is an update, the transfer must include the update and all previous versions.

You may not create any copy of the SOFTWARE. You can make one (1) copy the SOFTWARE for backup and archival purposes, provided, however, that the original and each copy is kept in your possession or control, and that your use of the SOFTWARE does not exceed that which is allowed in this Agreement.

The SOFTWARE unregistered (trial) version may be freely distributed, provided that the distribution package is not modified. No person or company may charge a fee for the distribution of the SOFTWARE without written permission from the copyright holder.

You agree not modify, decompile, disassemble, otherwise reverse engineer the SOFTWARE, unless such activity is expressly permitted by applicable law.

Passcape Software does not warrant that the software is fit for any particular purpose. Passcape Software disclaims all other warranties with respect to the SOFTWARE, either express or implied. Some jurisdictions do not allow the exclusion of implied warranties or limitations on how long an implied warranty may last, do the above limitations or exclusions may not apply to you.

The program that is licensed to you is absolutely legal and you can use it provided that you are the legal owner of all files or data you are going to recover through the use of our SOFTWARE or have permission from the legitimate owner to perform these acts. Any illegal use of our SOFTWARE will be solely your responsibility. Accordingly, you affirm that you have the legal right to access all data, information and files that have been hidden.

You further attest that the recovered data, passwords and/or files will not be used for any illegal purpose. Be aware password recovery and the subsequencial data decryption of unauthorized or otherwise illegally obtained files may constitute theft or another wrongful action and may result in your civil and (or) criminal prosecution.

All rights not expressly granted here are reserved by Passcape Software.

3.2 Registration

You can order fully registered version of **NPRW** at a cost of \$32 for non-commercial personal usage, \$64 for business or \$410 for multi site license.

Detailed instructions for all kinds of orders are available online at <u>Passcape ordering page</u>. Online orders are fulfilled in just a few minutes 24 hours a day 7 days a week.

On payment approval (for online orders, usually within a few minutes), we'll send you the registration code which will remove all limitations of the unregistered version. Your registration will be valid for all future versions of **NPRW**.

The ordering pages are on a secure server, ensuring that your confidential information remains confidential. As soon as your order is processed (usually in one business day for on-line payments), you will be provided with the registration code for your copy of the program. If you've made a payment, but haven't received a confirmation letter with your registration code within a reasonable amount of time (two business days for credit card payments or two weeks for other payments), please notify us!

Important: when completing the order form, please double-check that your e-mail address is correct. If it will not, we'll be unable to send you the registration code.

To complete the registration process

- Run the program
- Click more... button
- Select Registration from the popup menu
- Enter your registration code and name (optional) into the related fields and click the **Register** button.

Registration	X			
Please enter your registration code				
Registration information				
Your name (optional): John				
Registration code:				
Enter the registration code exactly as given to you in the registration e-mail. If you experience any problems during registration process, please refer to program help.				
<u>R</u> egister				

t is recommended to use the Copy and Paste commands instead of typing the code by hand. To do that, select the license key text in the registration message you have received with the mouse or using the text selection keyboard shortcuts (**Shift + arrow keys**). Then press the **Ctrl + Ins** shortcut on the keyboard to copy the selected block to Windows' Clipboard. Then open the registration window in the program, place the cursor in the registration key field and then press the **Shift + Ins** shortcut on the keyboard to paste the text from clipboard to that field. Next, place the cursor in the user name field, enter your name and then click on the **Register** button. If you have done everything right, the program will display the confirmation message.

3.3 Limitation of unregistered version

An unregistered version of the **Network Password Recovery Wizard** shows only first 3 characters of decrypted passwords and has some functional limitations.

Technical support

4 Technical support

4.1 Reporting problems

If you have a problem, please contact us at support@passcape.com. Please inform us about the following:

- Windows version including service packs and other fixes installed
- Program full version (see **About** dialog)
- Program registration information if any
- Detailed description of your problem (as much information as possible)

If you're reporting about program error, please attach **Crash.log** and **Nprw.log** files located in the **Network Password Recovery Wizard** installation directory.

4.2 Suggesting features

If you have any questions, comments or suggestions about the program or would like more information, email us at <u>info@passcape.com</u>. Please don't forget to mention the program name and version. Also make sure you have the latest program version installed. Your feedback helps us to improve our products and work more effective.

4.3 Contacts

Please don't hesitate to send your questions regarding our products to e-mail <u>support@passcape.com</u>. You will get reply during one or two days. Note, that registered users have priority in technical support.

If you experience any problems during registration process, please send a letter to <u>sales@passcape.com</u> We will be happy to assist you with the registration.

Please write in English!

You can find other password recovery utilities at https://www.passcape.com.

- B -

Base-word attack options 32